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THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 TO 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA McCALL

I Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

1. In response to the inquiries made by the Historical Institutional Abuse Inquiry in
a letter of the 21* May 2013, the Sisters would wish to put on record a number of
responses.

2. The Sisters were involved in running a number of institutions across Ireland
during their time. In Northern Ireland, the Sisters were involved in six different
institutions. There were two in Derry, Termonbacca and Bishop Street, one in
Portadown, and three in Belfast. Of the three in Belfast, two were operated
entirely by the Sisters, Nazareth House and Nazareth Lodge, and one was owned
by the Diocese of Down and Connor but was managed and maintained by the
Sisters at St. Joseph’s Babies” Home.

3. Each house would have been run on a semi-autonomous basis with the superior
in each house being responsible for the house. Whilst these houses were on a
semi-autonomous operation, the congregation would have ensured that all houses
were run within the ethos of the Sisters of Nazareth.

4. There were regular visitations, referred to in the earlier statement provided by the
Sisters, where a senior member of the Congregation would visit and speak with
the Sisters and look at all aspects of the operation including the religious
observance, as well as the management and maintenance of the Homes.

5. Indiscussions with the Sisters, and from experience, some of the superiors would
have been stricter than others and may have placed different emphasis on
different aspects of the running of the House, the Congregation and religious
observance. There is, therefore, no standard response which would cover exactly
how each House was run at any particular time.

6. A general daily routine for the Sisters would have depended on their role or
duties within the Congregation. Some would have been based entirely in the
convent; involved in daily prayer and also in making charitable collections upon
which the Congregation relied heavily in order to provide for the Institutions
being run by them.
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Some of the Sisters would have been trained and qualified teachers. They would
have risen around 6am, dressed and had Morning Prayer or meditation for about
half an hour. They would then attend Mass followed by breakfast and would then
have gone on to their appointments as teacher for their normal daily work.

In the evening the Sisters would then follow the routine of the Rosary and a light
supper followed by prayer and bed around 9.00 pm. Many of the teaching Sisters
would also have assisted with the children in the morning and in the evening to
supervise mealtimes, home works and general oversight of the children.

The Sisters who were responsible for attending to the children would normally
have had some form of early year’s child care qualifications. They would rise
before the children for their own prayer and would then be available to assist in
getting the children up and dressed to serve their breakfast and make sure that
they were then sent out to school wearing their appropriate uniforms. When the
children were not with the Sisters in the Home, they would have had other duties
to deal with such as supervising the children who may not have been at school
because they were ill or too young, ensuring that the accommodation was
appropriately tidied, cleaned and maintained as well as their own religious
duties. They would supervise the mealtimes, homework and recreation activity
of the children.

The Sisters are using and accepting the widest definition of abuse when they
respond to the queries raised by the Inquiry. They accept and understand this to
include all aspects of physical, emotional, psychological and sexual abuse.

Over the recent years a number of former residents have come to the Sisters,
both North and South of the border and as a result of the Ryan Commission in
the South of Ireland, regarding complaints and recollections of their time within
the care of the Sisters. Many tell of unhappiness in their time and this is a matter
of deep regret to the Sisters.

In some of the cases, the former residents have made direct contact with the
Sisters and have arranged to come and meet with them and discuss their time in
care. Some have made indirect approaches and have either accepted responses
through intermediaries or have eventually come to meet with the Sisters directly.
Of these many of them describe a time where they did not feel that they were
loved and cared for and that the Houses were not a warm happy place to be
brought up.

It is a matter about which the Sisters feel very deeply as it was always their
intention to provide a safe place for the young people in their care and it is a
matter of deep regret to them that any child did not feel loved or cared for.

As a result of discussions and investigations over the recent years, including the
Ryan Commission, claims brought to the Sisters’ attention through
intermediaries or directly and in light of this Inquiry, the Sisters do accept that on
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occasions the standard of the care provided to the children may not have reached
an acceptable level. There are instances when a particular Sister may not have
acted in an appropriate way or when the children were not protected as well as
the Sisters would have wished.

One of the main elements which has to be accepted is that the Sisters’ general
policy of no physical punishment of children was not implemented. There are
instances where children were the subject of a physical assault and this is not
acceptable when the care of children is to be considered.

Unfortunately the passage of time means that many of the Sisters who may have
been involved in the care have died and therefore cannot be approached to give
their information. Others are ill and are also unable to assist because their
memories are not what would be required to give responses to some of these
allegations.

One of the Sisters has recalled an incident where she saw a child being ‘rapped’
on the head by a Sister. This Sister was using a bunch of keys in her hand when
she struck the child. The incident was immediately reported to the Superior.
The Sister cannot recall the identity of the Sister who had rapped the child on the
head with keys nor can she recall what led to the child being dealt with in this
way or what steps were subsequently taken by the Superior. She can, however,
recall that she did report this incident immediately as she did not considered this
to be an acceptable way to proceed.

On a number of occasions recently, and in the not too distant past, the police
have asked to speak to a number of Sisters in light of some of the allegations
which have been made. The police investigations were initially on a case by
case basis but have now been co-ordinated under ‘Operation Charwell’. On
every occasion in which the police have asked to interview a Sister,
arrangements have been made and the Sister has made herself available to be
interviewed. The allegations in these individual cases are consistent with the
general nature of the allegations made to this Inquiry.

What is accepted is that there were occasions when a Sister has let her
frustrations overcome her self-control and has acted in an inappropriate manner.
The exact circumstances why or when any of these incidents occurred cannot be
dealt with in a very wide ranging way and will have to be looked at separately.

The Sisters themselves accept that the responsibilities they took on were taken on
in a voluntary way and therefore they cannot, and do not, seek to use this as an
explanation or excuse for any misconduct.

The Sisters had a long working day and dealt with a large number of children in
each of their individual units. Many of the children themselves would have been
from troubled backgrounds and had issues to deal with.
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22. In dealing with such children it is possible that a Sister or lay staff member may
have lost their temper and may have reacted in a way which is not acceptable in
light of the beliefs that the Sisters hold.

23. The Sisters would also have to accept that, within any group of children,
particularly when there are mixed ages, there may be the risk of bullying within a
group. It is likely that there will have been instances when some of the children
may have been unreasonable and unfair when dealing with other children and
this behaviour would also not have been acceptable. However, the Sisters do
have to accept that they could not keep an eye on the children for the entire time
and these issues of abuse between peers may have led to some children having an
extremely bad time and they may feel that the Sisters should have been in a
better position to look after them.

24. This is a matter of regret as the Sisters would always wish to provide a safe place
for the children placed in their care.

25. In regard to issues of sexual abuse, there have been very few allegations of that
hature made against the Sisters until this most recent inquiry highlighted a
number of further complaints.

26. These are matters about which the Sisters are extremely upset but have little
information to give or assistance that they can provide to the Inquiry. These are
new allegations and they are only recently coming to terms with them. None of
the Sisters have any memory of this type of abuse being discussed with them or
of receiving any training or warnings from any other agency about this behaviour
or how to monitor and watch for it. They have no records of any advice on how
they should have handled this type of behaviour if it did come to their attention.

27. If any child was subjected to any form of physical or sexual abuse, the Sisters
feel deeply sorry for this and do feel that they should apologise to anyone who
feels that they have been let down by the Congregation.

28. Returning to the police interviews, and most recently Operation Charwell, a
number of Sisters have in fact been interviewed.

29. None of the Sisters have ever been charged with any offence following any of
the interviews which have taken place regarding allegations about care provided
to children in Northern Ireland.

30. In these circumstances, there are no Sisters who have faced any form of trial nor
has anyone been convicted of any offences within Northern Ireland.

31. We have asked our solicitor to provide a schedule to the Inquiry of all of the
cases in which they have been involved and to facilitate the Inquiry’s
Investigations in that regard. We believe that this may in fact have already been
done.



Statement of Truth

I belieV}e that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

SND-412



SND-437

HIA REF:
Witness Name:

THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 TO 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA McCALL

1. I, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

2. This statement is provided by the Sisters of Nazareth at the request of the
Historical Institutional Abuse Inquiry following a letter dated 17" June 2013.

3. On behalf of the Sisters I speak about a number of recurring themes in regard to
some of the complaints made to the Inquiry by the various parties who have
returned to the Inquiry with concerns about their treatment whilst in the care of
the Sisters of Nazareth.

4. It is difficult, bearing in mind the period of time covered by the Inquiry, to deal
with a number of these issues accurately for each and every period which has
been identified. Understanding of the issues faced by the children, the
availability of food and clothes and society in general at the various times, meant
that practices could change constantly. =~ We are limited in some respects in
replying as there is a restricted pool of memory available to-us in trying to deal
with these issues. In regard to the investigations that have been conducted by the
Sisters and the documentation provided to the Inquiry there are a number of
things that can be said.

Use of numbers rather than names

5. There is a suggestion that children were known by numbers and not by their
names. Many children recall being called by a number and that this was a
demeaning and unfair way of treating them. There is no record anywhere that
this was a specific policy or that such a policy was used by the Sisters.

6. The Sisters understand and accept that many items belonging to a particular child
would have had a number placed on them. A child’s uniform, clothes or other
items may have had a number attached to ensure that that child’s items were
always returned to the same child from the laundry. There is no memory among
any of those that we have spoken to of children actually being called by a
number. It is possible, and accepted, that when items were returned a number
may have been called out rather than a child’s name. This would simply reflect
the fact that it was the number written on the child’s clothing rather than the
name.
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If such a policy had existed this would be a demeaning practice and is not one
which we would approve of today. However, we do not believe there was such a
policy and practice at any time and we believe that children would have been
known by name not by a number.

The Sisters cannot accept that the use of a numbering system for identifying
items of laundry was a deliberate intention to make a child feel less loved or
cared for than they actually were. The Sisters tried at all times to maintain a
homely environment and it is evident that the learning of a number to identify a
child would be more difficult than actually trying to learn a child’s name.
Children would have called each other by their names; therefore, the staff and
Sisters would have known the children by their names and not by any particular
number. There is no indication of this being a specific policy or practice nor is
there any suggestion that it was implemented or discontinued at any particular
time.

Bathing

A number of allegations are made concerning bathing and it is suggested that the
children were demeaned in various ways because of bathing. These contentions
have been made on a number of aspects. There is no memory or recollection of
children being required to line up naked and wait for their bath in a line of naked
children. Children would have been bathed on a single child basis and it may be
that one child was ready before another was finished and had to wait to have
their bath. This would not be a regular occurrence and was not a planned
procedure. It was never done deliberately nor was it done to humiliate or
embarrass a child.

The Sisters would not accept that there was any deliberate practice or policy of
requiring children to stand in a line with other children without clothing. The
Sisters would accept that at certain times, more likely in the earlier days, that
once a bath was filled more than one child may have had their bath in the same
bath water. There was nothing intentionally demeaning about any such practice
and this would reflect the sort of practices that would have been seen in ordinary
homes around the country where children were regularly bathed together or
where one child would bath in the water left by another sibling. It would also
reflect the costs of heating bathing water.

The Sisters say in more recent years, children would have been encouraged to
bathe on their own. Children would also have access to a bathroom without any
restricted bath time.

Another major contention is that the Sisters would have used Jeyes fluid, or
perhaps some other similar strong disinfectant, as a bathing agent. The Sisters
accept that Jeyes fluid or other such strong disinfectants, would have been used
in the homes as a cleaning agent and that the bathrooms themselves would have
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been washed and cleaned using these substances. These substances have an
extremely strong smell and it is accepted that children may well have felt that the
bathwater was mixed with Jeyes fluid as a cleansing agent for them because of
the lasting smell. The Sisters do not accept that it was a general practice to use
Jeyes fluid as an alternative for soap or other bathing agents.

It is accepted that, on occasions, Jeyes fluid may have been used to prevent an
outbreak of head lice, body lice and scabies. In a situation where a large number
of children shared facilities an outbreak of any of these parasitic lice could have
been very common and distressing. In these particular circumstances, it may be
that a small amount of Jeyes fluid was used occasionally for the purposes of
dealing with such conditions but, under no circumstances, as an alternative
standard bathing agent.

Toys

The Sisters are aware of suggestions that toys given to the children by parents,
family or other agencies were removed from the children by the Sisters. They do
not accept that this was a practice in any institution operated by them. To a large
degree the children in the houses did not receive gifts. As few received visits
from family, most families would not have been in a position to give the children
gifts if they did in fact visit. )

If there were gifts at Christmas, whether from family, Saint Vincent de Paul or
other charitable organisations, these would have been given to the children.
They would not be removed from them by the Sisters or any staff. The Sisters
do not understand where this memory comes from.

Disclosure of siblings

There was never any policy of not disclosing the existence of siblings in any
house. There may have been occasions when the existence of siblings was not
known to the Sisters as it may not have been in the information given when a
child was brought to our care.

In some cases, for example Temonbacca and Bishop Street, a boy could have
been brought to Temonbacca and his sister to Bishop Street by different people.
As we did not have central registers or computers, it is possible that the two
houses did not know of the siblings.

If children were admitted to the same house then they would almost certainly
have known their siblings. They may, in earlier years, have been separated into
age groups but they would not have been kept hidden from each other.
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In later years the arrangements changed to have children of the same family
placed in the same groups within the home to try to keep them together and
maintain a more family atmosphere.

It is accepted that as a result of communication difficulties of the time and,
possibly as result of inadvertent error in registers, some children may not have
known of siblings. In the instances where this occurred the Sisters apologise to
these children.

Separation of siblings

It is noted that there is a suggestion that siblings were separated within the
institutions.

It was not a specific policy, as far as any investigation can ascertain, to separate
the children from their siblings. In earlier years the children would have been
managed in age related groups and, therefore, were placed in different areas of
the institutions. In later years, the Sisters strived to ensure all families were kept
together rather than separate children according to age.

In regard to the separation, the children would not have been separated at all
times and would have been able to mix at the different socialising times in the
Home. However, as would have been the case in normal society, it is typical that
different age groups would not merge. This would have included not mixing with
siblings during those activities. Activities did take up a large part of the day and,
it is possible that, siblings would not have mixed for protracted periods. However
this would not have been a deliberate intention of these arrangements or an
objective of the Sisters to separate families

Family letters

Very few children would have received letters from their families. The
circumstances in which they came into the care of the Sisters of Nazareth were
not happy and, often, there would be no contact at all.

In some cases letters may have been received where a family have moved away,
a mother or father may have remarried or for some other reason they were not in
a position to maintain or re-establish a relationship with a child. If a letter was
received along those lines it may have been withheld from a child to avoid
causing pain or upset to the child. It was never a policy or approved practice to
withhold correspondence from a child. It may be that a letter would be read to a
smaller child and then kept by the superior or the Sister responsible for a unit.
Nevertheless, this can be considered to be speculation to some degree.
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Bed wetting

There are various complaints made about how the children were treated if they
wet the bed. The sheer number and consistency of these complaints make it very
difficult to deny that events such as those described did actually happen.

The causes of bed wetting were not known and the connection between bed
wetting and the psychological traumas suffered by these children were also not
fully appreciated. The anxiety felt by the children as a result of their home
history, the reasons leading to them coming into care and the separation from
their home life, may have collectively contributed to bed wetting within the
homes.

As time went on the Sisters have realised that this was not rebellious,
mischievous or misbehaviour and medical advice was sought. There are clear
memories of a buzzer alarm being obtained to try to prevent bed wetting and to
help the children to stop this occurring.

When considered in today’s society, the Sisters accept that, to embarrass or
humiliate a child who had wet the bed was not helpful and may have led to the
prolonging of the issue. This was done out of ignorance of the issues behind this
problem and a belief that the child could just stop the bedwetting if he or she
wished.

There is an overlap with an issue concerning bedwetting and bathing and some
former residents describe being washed in cold water as punishment for bed
wetting. The Sisters would not let a child go to school without making sure they
were washed. To allow the child to go out unwashed risked bullying and abuse
because they might smell. It is possible there was little hot water but the use of
cold water is not recalled by any sister as a punishment for bedwetting.

Supervision and Staff Ratios

The Sisters provided twenty-four hour care with a Sister being responsible for
individual groups of children. She would have been assisted by lay staff to aid in
the care for the children. =~ We are continuing to seek the existence of any
relevant documents in order to make direct comment on the supervision and staff
ratios as these would have changed over the periods depending on the number of
children in a particular house and the regulations which were in place at any
particular time.

Food

Over the years the quality and variety of food available changed. At all times the
Sisters tried to provide the best quality and nutritious food they could to the
children.
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When looking at the concerns raised by former residents, it is important to be
aware that the meals provided to the residents were the same meals provided to
the Sisters themselves. There was no separate canteen or food provision for the
Sisters. Rather, they got their meals after the children and ate the same meals
that had been provided for the children. Some sisters recall missing meals or
having very little if there was nothing left over after the children had eaten.

Over the years covered by the Inquiry society in Northern Ireland faced the era
following the First World War, Depression in the 1930’s, the Second World War
and rationing. To try and meet the needs of the children, the Sisters baked their
own bread when they could.

In Derry houses, the farm at Termonbacca was able to produce fresh food which
was shared with Bishop Street and fresh bread baked at Bishop Street was sent
up to Termonbacca.

Children would have been encouraged to eat the food provided as there was no
alternative available. It was seen to be in the children’s own interest to eat the
meals provided. The Sisters accept that this may mean someone standing
alongside a child to ensure they ate their meals but do not accept that a child was
ever force fed.

In the various reports by inspectors supplied to the Inquiry there are numerous
references to food supplied to the children and the variety of the menus. The
children who spoke to the inspectors seemed to have generally appreciated the
food provided.

The Sisters accept that not all of the children will have liked all of the food
provided and may have bad memories of this. However the Sisters always tried
to provide the best food they could afford for the children.

Clothing

The Sisters are aware of suggestions that the children wore poor quality clothing
or that they were dressed differently from other children and that the children
faced abuse from their peers because they stood out.

At all times the Sisters tried to provide the best quality clothing they could within
the scope of the budget restrictions placed on them. The Inquiry has already
heard that the Sisters relied heavily on charity and on collections taken up by the
Sisters themselves.

In Derry, the Sisters were very lucky to have received regular donations of
clothing from the Desmond’s Factory. They were, and remain, very grateful to
Desmond’s for those acts of kindness.
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42.  The Sisters ensured the children were provided with a full school uniform and
that they had the best clothing available. This will have included “hand me
downs” and charity donations from the local community and charity
organisations.

43.  The area around the Derry houses was an area of great poverty and so it is
accepted the clothing was not always the best quality but it was the best the
Sisters could provide.

Statement of Truth

I believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

Signed /a/éec@fmala”f < bt
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THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 TO 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA McCALL

1. I, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

2, This is the third statement provided by me to the Historical Institutional Abuse
Inquiry, at the request of the Inquiry to clarify certain information provided in
my previous statements.

Bed wetting

3 The Inquiry has sought clarification in regard to the Sisters’ understanding of bed
wetting incidents and how attitudes altered or changed through the years.
Clarification is sought on what advice the Sisters received in respect of this,
when that advice was received, from whom that advice was received.

4, To the best of my knowledge and from the information available to me, there
was no one piece of information or advice that changed or altered the
understanding of bedwetting. Sisters would have been trained in the latter years
and therefore would have a better knowledge and understanding of bedwetting.

5. Throughout the periods in which the Sisters provided care to young people and
more recently to the elderly, they maintained a close working relationship with
the relevant statutory agencies and local medical practitioners. The Sisters
would always have spoken to their colleagues from the statutory agencies,
inspectors (whether it be children’s home inspectors or the education inspectors
of any of the schools in which the Sisters worked), or more laterally, in regard to
the provision of care to the elderly.

. .o~ . . N .
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attending at the Homes and from other visitors to the Homes like charitable
organisations such as St. Vincent de Paul. The information obtained by Sisters
would have developed throughout this time by speaking with these particular
agencies, doctors and visitors.

7. There is no one incident or contact that any Sister can specifically address with
me. A number of the Sisters have spoken of waking children who were known
to wet the bed when the Sisters were going to bed, to try to encourage those
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children to go to the toilet to reduce the potential for an incident of bed wetting
during the night. [ am sorry that I cannot be any more specific about a particular
incident as there is no information available about a particular course,
communication, conference, or documentation provided by any third party which
can highlight or indicate a particular piece of knowledge having been passed on.
I can however say that the Sisters would always have listened to their advisors
and would have taken into account any information passed on to them.

Staff Rotas

We continue to check all our records to see if staff rotas and records have been
maintained. This is not an easy task bearing in mind the period covered by the
Inquiry and the time which has expired since the Sisters ceased to provide care in
children’s homes.

In that time the houses at Portadown, Termonbacca and Bishop Street have all
ceased to provide care to children. Termonbacca and Portadown are no longer in
the possession of the Sisters and have not been for some time. The two houses in
Belfast have been demolished. The site of Nazareth House on the Ormeau Road
has been sold and developed for apartments and Nazareth Lodge becoming the
venue for a new custom built facility for providing care to the elderly. Records
have not been retained in a central location and we are seeking assistance from
various agencies and parties to relocate as many records as we can.

The Sisters have however spoken of times when there would have been very
small numbers of staff, if any, in their houses.

I have spoken with Sisters who would have said that particularly in the 1960°s
and early 1970’s there could have been two Sisters caring for sixty or seventy
boys, leaving one Sister responsible for somewhere in the region of between
thirty to forty boys. Staff were employed in the early 1970s when Family Group
Homes commenced.

In hindsight this was clearly an unsatisfactory situation. However it was the
practice at the time.

If this practice resulted in some children not having the oversight, care and
affaction needed by them in the houses, this was not deliberate. The Sisters
simply did not have the funding to provide for significant numbers of children.
The Inquiry has been provided with copies of the financial registers showing the
shortfall in the funding care provided.

The Sisters relied very heavily on charity, the goodwill of the local communities
and the yearly Church collections to aide them in the provision of their work.
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When the Sisters now consider the staffing provision of those days, they are
aware that it was inadequate. They accept the failings in regard to staffing at
that time. The Sisters at that time would have relied heavily on recommendations
from the annual inspections which took place. None of the Sisters have recalled
any instance or any report in which the situation of the understaffing was raised
with them. Had the issue of understaffing been raised it would have led to
discussions about increased funding and provision of care staff within the
Homes. Such discussions would have been held directly with the relevant
supporting agencies such as social services, the education departments or health
departments and may well have resulted in additional care and staffing being
provided. As it was the Sisters could not have funded the additional staffing on
the income they had at the time.

Concessions or admissions by the Sisters

It is difficult for any one person speaking on behalf of the entire Congregation to
accept, or reject, any allegation which has been made against the Congregation
or individual Sisters. Many of the recent allegations have been made against
Sisters who have died or who are medically unable to consider or comment upon
any of the allegations. It would be unfair of the Sisters to make a finding against
any particular Sister when the allegation cannot properly be investigated nor can
that Sister respond to these allegations. This is not to say that the Sisters reject
any of the allegations made, merely that it is not appropriate for them to make a
finding against any particular individual.

In regard to certain incidents the Sisters have accepted that there was a
description of an incident where a Sister has mentioned one of her fellow Sisters
striking a child on the head with a bunch of keys. The Sisters have previously
stated that this was not considered acceptable behaviour nor is it deemed
appropriate or considered reasonable chastisement. Having considered the
Inquiry’s request, the Sisters have followed up this statement to clarify the
comments made by Sister Sister%ﬂﬂis currently in Nazareth
House, Hammersmith. Sister Sla&would have been in Derry from the 1969 to
1970 period, when she was responsible for collections and generally assisting

with work within the Home. She was not specifically involved with the children.
She was in Nazareth house, Bishop Street on a number of occasions. Sister

SIS has stated that she saw this happen on only one occasion. Sister SINEGY
recalls that sister NSRS ¢ IESNCE TN o

19.

head while she had a set of keys in her hand as opposed to hitting her with the
keys. She recalls SINIBEEI because she was in the choir and had red hair.

The Sisters do recall allegations made against a former employee
The Sisters accepted at the time of the allegations that they could have been true
and the matter was appropriately handled. Mr. NERagwas ultimately dismissed
from the employ of the Sisters. The police were informed and the matter
investigated by them.
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The Sisters are aware that Mr. el was not prosecuted at the time. That would
have been a matter for the police to determine after investigation.

The Sisters have also considered the allegations in light of the staffing and rota
positions. Whilst they cannot confirm or deny any particular allegation, the
Sisters accept that opportunities for bullying or the peer abuse described would
have been available. The Sisters could not provide the level of supervision and
constant monitoring of the boys that would have been necessary to avoid this
type of behaviour. In the circumstances the Sisters would accept that some level
of bullying and abuse did go on without the knowledge of the Sisters.

Policy on corporal punishment

The Sisters did not have any specific record of a written policy document as
described or as they understand the Inquiry to be seeking. I have attached to this
statement a copy of extracts from the general chapters and visitations that refer to
the work of the Sisters within the houses. These general chapters and visitations
would have looked at every aspect of the Sisters lives and would have been more
aimed at the religious life of the Sisters than the work life of the Sisters. These
extracts have been taken to assist the Inquiry in understanding some of the views
expressed at these general meetings of the Sisters.

When I used the word ‘policy’ in my previous statement, it was more to reflect
modern understanding of the way in which the houses were operated, not to
reflect a particular written policy type document or mission statement as would
exist in the current times.

The ‘policy’ would have reflected the ethos of the Sisters of Nazareth as a
Religious Institutions rather than as a specific operating practice.

The Sisters themselves followed a set of rules regarding their religious practices
which would have been prepared by the founder of the Order and developed by
the Order over the years but were not a set of rules as would be understood in the
running of a residential care institution.

26.

None of the Sisters to whom I have spoken have any recollection as to the
prosecution of any member of staff, either religious or lay staff. The Sisters do
not believe that any member of staff, whether that be a Sister, a visiting Priest or
lay member of staff who has been investigated, prosecuted and either convicted
or acquitted. The police have conducted a number of interviews over the years,
all of which the Sisters themselves have fully co-operated in, and more recently,
Operation Charwell has led to a number of other Sisters having been interviewed
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again. To the best of the knowledge of the Sisters no prosecutions in Northern
Ireland have been recommended to date and none have actually been carried out.

The Sisters have co-operated and will continue to co-operate with any
investigation by the police. The Sisters hope that this current position will
maintain and that no person involved with the care of children within the
Nazareth Homes, will be found to have acted in a way which would justify a
prosecution.

The Sisters are aware that some former residents have made allegations of
visiting Priests who may have misused their position. Again the Sisters cannot
fully comment on on-going police investigations which may prejudice any
potential prosecution and would wish to ensure that they are not seen to interfere
in any way with such an investigation.

The Inquiry has asked me to deal with the issues about the food provided to the
Sisters. In my earlier statement [ confirmed that the Sisters recall that on rare
occasions they did have to go without or have their meals rationed to ensure that
the children ate first.

This information is not based on any one particular report to me or in any written
statement that I have available. As a Sister I travelled around various institutions
belonging to the Order and spent a lot of time in the company of older Sisters
who had been involved predominantly in the care of children in the Homes.

In later years when I was Regional for England, Scotland and Wales, I travelled
to all of the houses and would have spent time talking to Sisters in these houses,
The conversations we had would have covered many topics including the times
that they would have spent in various homes both in Northern Ireland and in
other areas of the world. My comment that the Sisters recall going without food
is a reference to the various conversations I had with a number of Sisters in my
earlier days in the Congregation.

I was in attendance, as part of Operational Charwell, when the PSNI had made
arrangements for a number of Sisters from England and Wales to be interviewed.
After those interviews T met with various Sisters and had spoken to-them about
the allegations which had been made against them. In each case we discussed
very specific issues of the allegations and also the general complaints which have
become well known, in particular the comments about bathing, clothing, food

etc.

In the circumstances the position is, based on my general meetings and
discussions with the Sisters over many years, that meals were prepared and
served to the children. Meals were then served to the Sisters after the children
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had their meals. The meals were prepared at the same time in the same kitchen.
The Sisters did not at any stage have a better or even slightly different menu than
that served to the children. However in some houses in latter days the Sisters
meal (the same food as the children) was only cooked after the children’s meals
had been prepared and cooked.

Statement of Truth

1 believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

Signed = «f"”j"é" s e&"‘&gd' . /75 1/ G/Zé

Dated 22 L1 RN 2215

..................................................
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|, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —
This is the fourth statement provided by me to the Historical Institutional Abuse
Inquiry, to assist the Inquiry with details of my background and experience.

Representative Witness

3

For the avoidance of confusion | should make it clear that | have no direct or personal
knowledge of any of the significant and serious matters of complaint which lie at the

heart of this Inquiry.

I have however had access to such records and documents that still exist relating to
the Houses which are being looked into, as well as other material which has been
gathered in the course of this and related investigations and have tried to speak to as
many Sisters and others who might have information, or even relevant experience, to
help the Inquiry. | am currently reviewing the archive records of General Chapters
and Visitations to extract any relevant material from them. These are substantial
documents covering all aspects of the life and work of the Sisters and contain large
volumes of material completely unconnected to the provision of care for children. |
instructed our solicitor to offer access to these records to the Inquiry to confirm that

all relevant material has been provided to the Inquiry.

The Congregation as a whole is appalled by the suffering, misery and enormity of

what has been alleged.

Sisters of Nazareth Congregation

6.

| believe it is important for the Inquiry to understand a particular aspect of the need to

respond to and help this Inquiry.

The Sisters of Nazareth are a Congregation of faith, founded in the mid-19" century
as a charitable religious Congregation, dedicated to both a spiritual life and to the

needs of those the Order has tried to care for.
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8. I mention this for two reasons; in some cases | have found that much of the material
which the Congregation has amassed deals with topics touching upon the spiritual
lives and affairs of the members of the Congregation: these are matters of the utmost
sensitivity which | would ask to be always treated as confidential in both the personal

and public interest.

9. The Congregation has always been a small community of limited funds and
resources, heavily reliant on charitable donations and alms collected by the Sisters,
guided by faith and spiritual commitment.

Personal Background
10. I entered the Congregation in 1968 and was professed as a Sister of Nazareth in

1971. I grew up in Glasgow where | saw the work of the Congregation and often
helped the Sisters voluntarily as a teenager working with children and young people
who were in the care of the Sisters in Glasgow, before taking the decision to enter

the Religious life myself.

11. Over the years | have ministered both in the care of the children and the elderly in the
UK, Southern Ireland and South Africa, holding positions of responsibility.

12.1did not live in or work in any of the Houses which are being investigated, but have
known many of the Sisters who did. Itis typical of the experience of many Sisters
that they will move between the Houses in the development of their spiritual lives and

ministries.

Appointments
13. My appointments have been as follows:

2012- Elected as a General Councillor residing at Nazareth House Hammersmith

2009 - 2012 Appainted Regional Superior UK residing at Nazareth House Finchley

London

2008 — Appointed Regional Superior, Northern Region residing at Nazareth House,

Glasgow

2006 -2007 Appointed as local Superior, Bonnyrigg, Edinburgh
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2005 General Assistant Nazareth House, Glasgow

2002 - 2004 Appointed to a Mission in Cape Town, Khayelitsha Township as Manager
of Créche and Hospice for HIV and Aids children and aduits. Residing at Nazareth
House, Cape Town

1993- 2001 Matron, Residential and Nursing unit for the Care of the Aged, Nazareth
House, Hammersmith London. Hammersmith, Hounslow & Ealing Health Authority
Residing at Nazareth House, Hammersmith, London

1993 Matron Nursing Unit for the Elderly Cardiff . Cardiff Health Authority. Residing at
Nazareth House Cardiff South Wales

1992-1993  Matron, Residential Care of the Elderly, Fahan Co Donegal Ireland. North
Western Health Board. Residing at Nazareth House, Fahan.

1988 — 1991 RGN training Maelor General Hospital Wrexham North Wales. Residing
at Nazareth House, Wrexham North Wales

1987 — 1988 Care Manager Residential Care Unit for the Elderly. Liverpool & Sefton
Social Services. Residing at Nazareth House, Great Crosby, Liverpool.

1985 -1986 Care Manager Residential Care Unit for the Elderly, Dublin, Ireland.
Eastern Health Board. Residing at Nazareth House, Dublin.

1981 - 1984 Care Manager Residential Care Unit for the Elderly Southend Essex.
Sothend Social Services. Residing at Nazareth House, Southend on Sea Essex

1980 - 1981 Manager Childrens Home Nottingham. Nottingham Social Services.
Residing at Nazareth House, Nottingham

1979 -1980 Manager Childrens Home Northampton. Northampton Social Services.
Residing at Nazareth House, Northampton

1975~ 1979 Manager Childrens Home Newcastle Newcastle Social Services Residing

at Nazareth House. Newcastle — upon- Tyne

1973 — 1975 Aberdeen Student
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Qualifications:

14. Like many other Sisters | have studied for and obtained numerous qualifications

including:

State Registered Nurse; 1986 -1990. Maelor General Hospital, Wrexham, North Wales.
Clwyd Health Authority, North Wales.

Certificate in Care of Children and Young People 1971. Robert Gordon Institute,

Aberdeen Scotland.

Combined Certificate in the Theory and Practice of Counselling; 1993 — 1994 Central
School of Counselling and Therapy, London.

Care Work Based Assessor, 1994 National Vocational Qualification London

Certificate in Management Studies; 1991 Llandaff College of Higher Education, Cardiff,
South Wales.

Diploma in Dementia Care. Leeds Metropolitan University, 2002
Leadership for Superiors Pontificio Regina Apostolorum, 2008

Postgraduate Diploma in Leadership and Management. Loughborough University, 2012

Specialist Courses

15. Throughout my career | have attended ongoing and varied short courses related to
Residential Care, management, welfare and leadership as part of my professional

development.

16. Within the Congregation, | am one of four “General Councillor's” and | have been
designated as the Congregation’s safeguarding person. It is within my scope of work
now that | have a responsibility to look into the detail of these sad and disturbing
complaints and to find such evidence as there might be to help the Inquiry.
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Inguiry co-operation

17. | freely acknowledge that in many cases | cannot answer the searching questions
posed by the Inquiry and | have found that there are neither witnesses left nor
documentation available to help. | continue to review the archive material and to seek
information from within the congregation to try and respond as best and as fully as |

can.

18. Sisters who could have helped are deceased or so ill and infirm that they can no
longer recall their lives at that time. Some records were not be kept beyond statutory
time limits because of the Mmeagre resources of the Congregalion and a lack of
storage space. Houses have closed and memories have faded. Some documents
have been moved and we continue to check records and files to locate material to

assist the Inquiry.

19. Often | am obliged to rely on a collective memory, or confused recollection, or the
general sense of how things must have been in the light of our guiding principles and
“the common practice of our Houses, in the age in which they operated.

20. As a member of the Congregational Leadership group, | have been asked to be the
spokesperson for the Congregation and hope to co-operate fully with the Inquiry on
behalf of the Sisters.

Statement of Truth
| belie.ve that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.
Signed \L: /)j-c-,{ Lo M4 EO.
Dated S//:D‘ /Q@//;
Re-se, /- /5‘/05#/52 O/




SND-18044

HIA REF:
Witness Name:

THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 — 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA MCCALL

10.

11.

12.

I, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

This is a further statement provided by me to the Historical Institutional Abuse Inquiry, to
assist the Inquiry in my statement of 22™ December 2013.

Family Group Homes

Over the years | have lived and spoken to many Sisters who had worked in Termonbacca and
Bishop Street; it is from these Sisters | have acquired the knowledge to speak from their
experiences.

In Termonbacca, a new build comprising of two separate units were completed. Extensive
renovations were carried out in the nursery unit at this time, converting large dormitories to
smaller bedrooms.

In Bishop Street, the home was converted into three separate units. The large dormitories
had been divided into two and three bedded rooms.

Each unit was managed by a Sister assisted by senior girls in Bishop Street and by staff in
Termonbacca.

The catalyst for the introduction of group homes for Termonbacca was the completion of
the new build. In Bishop Street, the catalyst was to keep in line with Termonbacca.

These were affordable at this time as we received Grants from the Ministry of Home Affairs.

Staffing
Before 1972 we accept that staffing in Termonbacca was inadequate.

Before 1977, we accept that staffing in Bishop Street was inadequate.

The consequences of inadequate staffing would diminish the level of supervision and
constant monitoring of the children, as the Sisters would have hoped to achieve. In some
circumstances. It is quite clear that peer abuse and bullying may have occurred without the
knowledge of the Sisters. Whilst they cannot confirm or deny any allegations, it is appalling
and shocking to consider the allegations at hand under the care of the Sisters.

Annual Inspections

To refer to the Inspections carried out by the Ministry of Home Affairs under Section 102 of
the Children and Young Persons Act (Northern Ireland) 1950 and later Section 130 of the
Children and Young Persons Act (Northern Ireland) 1968.
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1950 “Two school Inspectors from Stormont visited the House and they were very pleased
with the accommodation for the boys.” Page 80

1957 “The different officials who have visited us from Stormont were very pleased with the
boys.” Page 115

1961 “Miss Wright and Dr. Simpson from the Ministry of Home Affairs called in July and
were very pleased with the children and the work done.” Page 132

1962 “Miss Forrest from the Ministry of Home Affairs came during night recreation, was
pleased to find the children so well and happy, some at band practice, they played for her.”
Page 134

1963 “Miss Forrest and Mr Parks came to see the boys place from Stormont. Members of
the Child Welfare Council came to see the children. They remarked how well cared for the
children looked and hoped we would be able to improve this present building.” Page 142

1964 “Dr Simpson and Miss Hill paid us a visit, February 4. Both were very pleased with the
boys and most anxious that we would build dormitories as more sleeping accommodation
was needed, said they would say so at Stormont and hoped we would get a Grant.” Page 143

1967 “Miss Forrest and Miss Hill and Mr Blackburn, Ministry of Home Affairs Stormont came
on 15 November to visit the children and discuss the proposed new building.

Superior Bishop Street and Mr Frank Guckian Chairman of Termonbacca
Aid Association were also present. It was agreed that the first step would be for the
architect to prepare sketch plans and make an estimate of costs.” Page148

1968 “Miss Forrest Minister of Home Affairs, came on September 10 to see the plans of the
proposed new building and to discuss same with the Architect,- Miss Forrest was
pleased with the plans and said she would take them to Stormont to have them examined
and to get in touch with us as soon as possible. Miss Hill, Ministry of Home Affairs,
telephoned that our plans were acceptable, a few minor alterations were necessary and that
they would be sending for | ]Il Architect, very shortly, for a discussion. || EGzGzG
went to Stormont where it was decided that it would be necessary to erect a covered way
from our kitchen to the new building and to provide a doctor’s room in one of the three
houses. He has now to draw a more detailed plan and sent a copy of same to the Ministry.”
Page 155-6

1969 “On 27 November we had a visit from Dr Simpson and Miss Hill from Stormont. We
had a visit also from Mr Hume MP.”

“In December, JEINIDIS{OEM Children’s Officer for Tyrone, called to the children in her care.
We had another visit from Mr J. Hume, he spent quite a lot of time with the boys.” Page 162

1970 “In November 27 we had a visit from Dr Simpson and Miss Hill from Stormont. They
were pleased with arrangements for the children under our difficult circumstances.” Page
165

1971 “In February we had a visit from Miss Forrest, from the Ministry of Home Affairs. We
received two instalments of our Grant from the Ministry. £5850.00 + £3425.00.”
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Also in February, “there was a meeting on the site. Everyone present agreed that a
completion date in October is certainly possible.”

In September, “we received a Grant of £1492.00 from the Ministry of Home Affairs.”

In November, “we had a Grant from the Ministry of Home Affairs, £2497.00”
Page 166-7

1972 In January, “we received a further Grant of £3586.00 for the Ministry of Home Affairs
for the building fund.”

In April, “we received a further instalment of Grant for the new wing from the Ministry of
Home Affairs, £4113.00.”

In May “we received a further instalment of Grant from the Ministry of Home Affairs
£2065.00"

In September, “we got a further instalment of Grant from the Ministry of Home Affairs
£3035.00 and we had a visit from Miss Forrest, Ministry of Home Affairs. She was very
pleased with the renovations in the nursery and the new building.”

In November, “Dr Simpson and Miss Hill came to visit us and stayed for lunch. They were
both very pleased with the new building which was opened on 21* November. The Bishop
came and said Mass and blessed our new wing.”

In December, “we were happy to welcome Miss Forrest, Mr Poulter and Mr J Irvine, from the
Ministry of Home Affairs. They were delighted with the new building — thought it was the
best they had seen yet. Mr Irvine promised we would get a further Grant of £12,500.00 also
to help with running costs, he promised to write to the local Authorities to ask them to pay
£11.50p per child per week maintenance for children in their care who were admitted to St
Joseph’s. We trust this will get a successful hearing at all the meetings to be held to discuss
it.

The Children's Officers from County Derry, Omagh and Fermanagh, visited also-
and members of the Derry Development Commission with the Chief Welfare Officer.” Page
179 - 186

1973 “We are very pleased to receive our further Grant £12,500.00 from the Ministry of
Home Affairs for the new building.” Page 187

April, “We were pleased to receive a further instalment of Grant £4875.00 from the Ministry
of Home Affairs.” Page 191

December, “We had a visit from Miss Hill from the Ministry of Home Affairs, she was very
pleased with all she saw and complimented the Sisters on how well kept everything was in
the different Houses.” Page 198

1974 “Miss Forrest and Mr Kirkpatrick from the Department of Social Services Belfast, they
were very pleased with everything and congratulated the Sisters.” Page 201
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September, ‘| I - I o the Western Health Board visited to

discuss course on Child Care etc.” Page 206

December, “We had a visit from Miss Hill, Stormont. She is very pleased with all the work
that is being done for the children.” Page 208

1975 “Miss Hill from the Social Services Department visited and spent most of the afternoon
and early evening with the children. She was very pleased with her visit and paid special
tribute to the work being carried out by the Sisters.” Page 210

1976 “Miss Hill visited and spent a very pleasant afternoon. She was delighted to meet the
children and complimented the Sisters very highly for their care and work.” Page 215

1978 “The newly appointed [JJllof Social Serviced of the Western Health and Social
Services Board, | NN and his assistant_ paid us a visit before Christmas.
Sisters and children were busy with decorations and the visitors commented on the happy,
natural atmosphere which seemed to prevail in the groups.” Page 238

Congregational Inspections

Inspections were also carried out by the Superior General or the Deputy who reside in
Hammersmith, London. These inspections were provided to the Inquiry and included in the
History of the Foundation Book as the following:

1928 — Page 13

1931 — Page 18

1933 — Page 28

1936 — Page 36

1943 — Page 55

1946 — Page 66

1948 — Page 74

1951 — Page 81

1955 - Page 101

1956 —Page 110

1959 — Page 123

1962 —Page 137

1966 —Page 146

1969 — Page 159
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1971 — Page 169
1972 — Page 185
1973 — Page 189
1978 — Page 225
1979 — Page 241
1980 — Page 251

1981 — Page 257

Allegations
14. As established in my third statement, The Sisters do recall allegations being made against a

former employee JISINIDEIEIThe Sisters, SR 142 and

were very open in discussing with me the matters which arouse surrounding [S\InReks]
and condemned his actions rigorously.

15. On questioning he states that when on holiday in Portstewart with the
children, one childi\%said he felt unwell and so stayed behind when the
children went out for a day trip. lE@reported to the police that EDNBEL]stayed behind
to care for him, but [ SR said that this was untrue because [ENBEER was their driver

and was with them on the trip. —

16. SR i/ 2 |50 recalls a second incident Wwent for an overnight stay with il
RALEE at his parents’ house on Christmas Eve. reported to the police that
came into the single bedroom and abused him.was only[Jllvears old at the time
of the incident.

17.;@llreported these incidents to the police when he was aboutllyears of age. EINIBEELS]
was immediately suspended from our employment and the alleged incidents were
investigated by the police.

Convictions
In so far as to discuss Fr Brendan Smith, it is true to say that Sisters are appalled at the
activities which are now known to have occurred at the hands of Father Brendan Smith. At
no time were the Sisters ever aware of the manner in which Father Brendan Smith behaved
when he was in any of our Houses.

Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

Signed ci/zt” /7 47‘-51 el T C/’C“ e
Dated ?//(”’j l. '/i? 7/ 4‘
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1. This witness statement is written in response to a specific letter dated Wednesday 5"
February in regard to the Children and Young Persons (Voluntary Homes) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 1952 and the Children and Young Persons (Voluntary Homes) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 1975.

2. Inregard to the above named | have spoken with the archivists within the congregation and
have also spoken to Senior Sisters including the Mother General and other Sisters who were
both in Belfast and Derry during the period.

3. Asfar as | can identify no single person was appointed to visit either Termonbacca or Bishop
Street in either of the Belfast Houses and it would appear that monthly investigations were
not carried out in accordance with the legislation. The Superior of each house would have
been responsible for the conduct and running of the house. That responsibility would have
covered all duties within the house, care for the children and the elderly, the spiritual and
phyéical wellbeing of all residents including the Sisters. The Superior of each house would
have acted in the best interests of all under her control to the best of her ability.

4. The memory of Sisters generally, not specifically of Termonbacca, Bishop Street, Nazareth
House or Nazareth Lodge would have been of a Superior carrying out a daily visit to all areas
of the Home. This would have involved the Superior speaking to and visiting the convent
area and the Sisters involved there, laundry, kitchens, childrens and elderly care areas within
the houses. There would not necessarily have been any record of that save for mentions
which may have arisen in Council Books or Reports which would have gone to the general
chapter. | believe copies of the relevant Council Books, foundation books and general
chapters have now been copied and will be forwarded to the Inquiry if they have not
already.

5. A Superior was appointed to each house by the Mother General and the General Council for
a set period of time.
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“«

According to the most recent constitution a Superior will have shown . skills and
leadership and have experience in the Apostle(ministries within the house) she must be able
to engender serenity at confidence and to instil resolution. She is to show kindness, with
firmness, understanding and respect towards all. So these Superiors must be particularly

professed.”

A further review of the constitutions would also refer to a Superior and suggests that a
Superior “... must show herself to the Sisters as a worthy representative of God and of the
congregation. By example, by exhortation, by humility and by inventive resourcefulness she
is to inspire the Sisters fidelity to their vocation, to community living and to the Apostlate”.

A Superior would have been expected to ensure that the children were well cared for, had
good nutritious food, that there was development for their personality and to endeavour to
provide a “homely” atmosphere and to maintain an appropriate general routine for the
children. The nature and quality of the accommodation, the general décor of the house
amongst other things would have been noted and would have been commented on by a
Superior. Children and staff would have been free to speak to the Superior at any time.

In later years a Superior to a particular house would have been able to speak to the Regional
Superior who would, if necessary, then speak to the Superior General if any matters needed
attending. In earlier years the Superior would have had to go directly to the Superior
General as there would not have been a Regional. In addition to the Superiors own daily
visits and walks around the house there would have been visits from the congregation by
way of Visitations, records of which have been referred to the Inquiry previously, as well as
visits by Government Inspectors and other appropriate persons and we believe copies of
some of those State inspection reports have also been available to the Inquiry

Reports may well not have been retained by a particular house following closure and may
have been held in another house or in the Regional House when regions were created. A
particular Superior may have retained a copy of those reports in her own records but that
was not a rule and would reflect the particular superior.

Visitors books would also have been retained in each of the houses and visitors would all
have been expected to enter their names and dates of visits in each of those books. None of
these books have been located but we will continue to search all houses to see if any can be
found.
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Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

2 ,
Signed -v-/.J,ch’x/c{—/( 'f/a:/\m [im’u e f £l cc

Dated -~ S-"/ v‘l// Leil,
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1. |, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

2. Thisis a further statement provided by me to the Historical Institutional Abuse Inquiry, to
assist the Inquiry in regards to their letter dated Wednesday 5" February considering the
Children and Young Persons (Voluntary Homes) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1952 and the
Children and Young Persons (Voluntary Homes) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1975.

3. Inorder to provide this statement, | have spoken with the archivists within the congregation
and have also spoken to the Superior General, Senior Sisters and other Sisters who were
both in Belfast and Derry during the period.

4. As far as | can identify no single person was appointed to visit either Termonbacca or Bishop
Street on a monthly basis. In the earlier years, Ireland was not in fact a specific region and
would have come under the full control of the mother house in London. The idea of a
Regional Superior was a much later appointment in 1970. The Superior of each house would
have been responsible for the conduct and running of the house. That responsibility did not
fall solely within the ambit in the house itself but would have covered all duties within the
house, care for the children and the elderly, the spiritual and physical wellbeing of all
residents including the Sisters. The Superior of each house would have acted in the best
interests of all under her ambit to the best of her ability.

5. The memory of Sisters generally was of the Superior carrying out a daily visit to all areas of
the Home. This would have involved the Superior speaking to and visiting the convent area
and the Sisters involved there, laundry, kitchens, children’s and elderly care areas within the
houses. | believe copies of the relevant Council Books, Foundation Books and General
Chapters have now been copied and will be forwarded to the Inquiry if they have not
already.

6. A Superior was appointed to each house by the Superior General and the General Council for
a set period of time.

7. According to the most recent constitution a Superior will have shown “..... skills and
leadership and have experience in the Apostolate she must be able to engender serenity at
confidence and to enstill resolution. She is to show kindness, with firmness, understanding
and respect towards all. Superiors must be perpetually professed.”
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8. A further review of the constitutions would also refer to a Superior and suggests that a
Superior “... must show herself to the Sisters as a worthy representative of God and of the
congregation. By example, by exhortation, by humility and by inventive resourcefulness she
is to inspire in the Sisters fidelity to their vocation, to community living and to the Apostle”.

9. A Superior would have been expected to ensure that the children were well cared for, had
good nutritious food, that there was development for their personality and to endeavour to
provide a “homely” atmosphere and to maintain an appropriate general routine for the
children. The nature and quality of the accommodation, the general décor of the house
amongst other things would have been noted and would have been commented on by a
Superior. Children and staff would have been free to speak to the Superior at any time.

10. In later years a Superior to a particular house would have been able to speak to the Regional
Superior who would, if necessary, then speak to the Superior General if any matters needed
attending. In earlier years the Superior would have had to go directly to the Superior
General as there would not have been a Regional. In addition to the Superiors own daily
visits and walks around the house there would have been visits from the Sisters themselves
in visitations which has been referred to the Inquiry previously, as well as visits by
Government Inspectors and other appropriate persons and we believe copies of some of
those inspection reports have also been available to the Inquiry. We believe further records,
not in possession of the Sisters, are available to the Public Records Office of Northern Ireland
going back into the 40’s.

11. Reports would have been retained in the house and a copy of the report would have been
sent to the Regional Superior.

12. Visitors books would also have been retained in each of the houses and visitors would all
have been expected to enter their names and dates of visits in each of those books. We
believe that some of these books may be in our archive in Belfast and a specific check is now
being made to see if any of these can be obtained and copied for the Inquiry.

Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

SlgnEd/,’/K" //(4;:’ ('C(-/c,’, /{’i/»/wt C/J:< (/2'/7 |
Dated ) 3/64)5/—//':25:) /4
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10.

11.

|, Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

This is the sixth statement provided by me to the Historical Institutional Abuse
Inquiry, to assist the Inquiry in regards to their letter dated 30" January 2014.

To respond to the Inquiries issue of how the document came to be in the possession of the
Diocese of Derry, it is unclear how the Diocese obtained this document but it may have been
copied by the hospital of the doctor.

A copy of this document was not provided to the Inquiry by the Sisters of Nazareth as we did
not have the document and we have not been able to locate a copy. This may have been
because it was in the file for the resident which is no longer in our possession.

The Congregation believes the author to be SR 174 as she was the

Superior of the Termonbacca House at the time of the incident in 1951.

We believe the document was written as a report, soon after or around the same time, as
the incident took place.

The congregation believes the reason the document was written was to record the incident
as it was a serious accident. It would also have been recorded due to the conflicting
accounts surrounding the incident.

In relation to who the document was written to; the congregation does not know as it is not
clear nor is it addressed to any particular person.

In regards to who the recipient of the document is; we do not know as it was not clear who
the recipient was intended to be but appears it was archived by the Diocese of Derry.

The Sisters of Nazareth cannot state the length of time JRSI\IDESXIsM was in hospital as

they obtain no further documentation in relation to this incident.

We do not know if there was any further interaction between Dr Moran and the
congregation as there are no records currently available.
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12. We also have no record of any interaction between the Bishop and the Congregation
relating to this letter.

13. In order to assist the Inquiry, the Sisters of Nazareth can confirm SND 535 was
born in - admitted in August 1945 and discharged in March 1955. No further
documents have been found regarding JEESIN|DEXIS)

Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.
4 P ’ P A 4 7 7 2
Signed_~/«< i 75}‘6/( oo 7 =& a.,(/(,'
] {
[#-4 -~ @ o
Dated / /5’5 /uz 28/
/ 74




HIA REF:

Witness Name:

THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 TO 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA McCALL

| Sister Brenda McCall will say as follows —

1. This is a statement provided by me to give some general background assistance to
the Inquiry. It is hoped that this will try to give some indication as to the history and
development of the Congregation and some of the efforts which are currently being made to

assist the Inquiry.

2, The Congregation was founded by Sister Victoire Larmenier who was born in France
in 1827. She came to London in 1851 at the age of twenty-four and at the request of
Cardinal Wiseman set up a facility to reach out to the homeless and abandoned children. At
this time there was no assistance by way of State aid and poverty was a major issue within
society. Before she reached the age of fifty Sister Victoire had established eight houses in

order to provide assistance and care to young and old who were in a situation of great need.

3. The first home was created and set up in Hammersmith, London and depended
entirely upon the generosity of the local people. At present the Sisters of Nazareth have
houses in'Australia, New Zealand, USA, South Africa, Zimbabwe, Ireland and the United

Kingdom.

4, The Congregation of the Sisters of Nazareth is governed by a Superior General with
the assistance of her council. The council itself is made up of four senior Sisters who are
appointed as councillors at the General Chapter. The Superior General and her four
councillors reside in the Mother House in Hammersmith but conduct their responsibilities by

visiting the various houses around the world. The present Superior General is Sister Mary
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Ann Monaghan who was elected in 2006 and ultimately re-elected in 2012 at the General
Chapters held in those years.

5. General Chapters were held from the beginning of the Congregation usually every six
years with Intermediate Chapters being held between the General Chapters. From 1950’s
only the General Chapters were held every 6 years with the exception of an Extraordinary
Chapter in 1968, which was convened in response to Vatican Il call to Religious

Congregations to review their way of life.

6. From the beginning of the Congregation there were Visitations to each branch house

made from the Mother House in Hammersmith.

7. Between 1960 and 1970 seven Regions were created to assist with the
administration of the organisation. There were the Australasian Region, The Southern
African Region, American Region, Irish Region and Northern UK, Eastern UK and Western
UK. Due the storage of Sisters and the closure of some homes, it was decided at the
Chapter in 2000 to have only two regions instead of three in the UK and in 2009 it was
further decided to have only one region in the UK.

8. Each Region is governed by a Regional Superior aided by her Council which
amounted to two senior Sisters within a region. The Regional Superior is appointed for a
period of three years and has a duty to visit each of the houses within her Region on a
regular basis. She also has duties to visit the Sisters personally and in particular to visit the
sick Sisters to ensure that they are aware of the on-going consideration and care felt
towards them by the Congregation. The Regional Superior is responsible for keeping the
Superior General informed of all affairs on-going within her region. The Regional Superior
must also make one formal visitation to each house every three years.

9. The general visitation from the Mother House in Hammersmith occurs once every
three years as well as a regional visitation also once every three years. Guidelines for the
Visitations are set out in the Constitutions and the Visitator must move around all areas of
the house, speak with residents including elderly, children, staff and any visitors in the house
whom they meet. The Visitator will also check the documentation held by the house such as
registers and other documentation required and held to be relevant. These will include
inspection reports (by the relevant statutory agencies) and if any recommendations or
requirements are made at any inspection, the Visitator will check as to whether these
requirements or recommendations have been followed up, whether they are being
implemented or in fact have been implemented. If there are any areas of concern the

Visitator will carry out and given direction that further steps be taken.
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10. During a visitation each Sister will be interviewed by the Visitator and is encouraged
to speak openly and honestly to the Visitator about any matter of concern to her in regard to
her own position, development or in regard to the running of a house. If any Sister is
unhappy or feels unsuited to any of the work or duties she has been given, she is asked to
deal with this, to voice it with the Visitator and any such concerns will be considered and
dealt with by the Visitator.

11. Sisters have always been free to write to the Superior General at any time about any
matter of concern. | personally have never known of a Sister who was considered to be
unsuitable for working with the elderly or children in one house, to be removed from that

house and placed in a similar apostolate in another house.

12. The purpose of visitation is to strengthen the Sisters in their vocation and to help and
support them in any way if necessary. The visitation also hopes to gain an understanding of
the running of each house and each community and to bring to the attention of the
appropriate person, whether that be the local House Superior, the Regional Superior, Sisters
in the community, managers, CEOs etc., of any allegations or concerns or suggestions of
unfairness, injustice, abuse or a failure to provide adequate care. At the end of the visitation
a Visitator meets with the Superior of the house and her council and reports her findings to
them and any follow up steps which need to be considered are discussed. Following that a
meeting is then held within the whole community when the contents of the report are
presented. The report is then sent to the Superior General in Hammersmith.

13. There is constant communication between the Regional Superiors and the Superior
General about the affairs of each house. This communication has improved throughout the
years and clearly, with the development of modern communication, is much better now than

it would have been previously but it would always have been the case.

14. I have identified material within the General Chapter Books and have arranged for
that to be copied and forwarded to the Inquiry. The General Chapter which takes place
every six years at present, previously three years, would discuss all of the issues within each
of the houses and also would discuss issues of the noviciate, finance and other relevant
matters. These records therefore are extremely voluminous and deal with large matters
which are of no relevance or concern to the matters before this Inquiry. | have however
arranged to have the relevant pages dealing with the houses in Northern Ireland to be
copied and these will be disclosed to the Inquiry so that the Inquiry can have an
understanding of the nature and type of report which comes before the council at those
Chapters.
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15. I have also met with the Superior General and a number of the Sisters throughout the
UK and Ireland. A meeting was also arranged in Knock where Sisters of all ages who had
any information in regard to the houses in Derry and Belfast were asked to deal with the
questions and themes which have been addressed by the Inquiry to date.

16. One of the major issues we discussed was the documentation, or lack of

documentation, which appears to exist within the Congregation.

17. I have spoken to as many of the older sisters as | can regarding the maintenance and
storage of records in UK as well as in Ireland. | will try to set out our understanding of these

issues to the Inquiry.

18. The Inquiry is aware through a statement from 2 SND 136 that he appears to

have retained his original records. He has told us that when he left Termonbacca his social
worker gave him the records personally. He did not receive them from the Sisters. We
believe that when children left, particularly children who were voluntary attendances, their
files would have been given to them. | am sure that this was not necessarily always the
case but children could perhaps have been given these notes for their own history and
record rather than have them retained by the Congregation. This could possibly have also
been an attempt to minimise the amount of material which had to be stored by the

Congregation.

19. There is agreement among many Sisters that if a child moved from the house
operated by the Sisters either into the care of the Social Services or to another house,
whether that be run by the Congregation, another congregation or by another institution, that
their records would have been forwarded to that Congregation or institution. This would
have ensured that a full record of a child's development was maintained so that the new
institution would also have had access to those records and would then have retained them.
Again it also reduced the volume of material to be stored by the sisters.

20. Particularly in later years copies of records would also have been supplied to the
relevant social services where that was appropriate. It is likely therefore that duplicate files
would have existed within the home and within relevant welfare and social services
departments. Sisters do recall that after a child had been absent from the home for a long
period having been returned to their family or moved to another institution some of the
records still held by them would have been destroyed. This would have been done for no
reason other than to provide space for storage of other records as they had no reason to
believe then that the records may be needed many years later. From the information which
has been produced to the Inquiry it seems that some of the documentation was provided
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directly to the social services and records has been retained by them or in some cases
copies of the records have been retained by the relevant social services and welfare
departments. There is, unfortunately, no-one currently alive who recalls the closure of either
Termonbacca or Bishop Street and therefore first hand evidence concerning the storage or
destruction of documents cannot be confirmed. The Sisters would accept that there is likely
to be some truth in the description of older documents in regard to children who had long left
the care of the Sisters having been destroyed. Documents which were historically important
to the Coﬁgregation such as the registers, foundation books and documents of that nature
were transferred to either Hammersmith or the regional house. These registers have been
made available to the Inquiry and the foundation books were also located in storage in
Dublin and have also now been provided to the Inquiry. Documents such as annual accounts
which may have been retained for a period of years could well also have been destroyed
simply as they were not required to be retained by any statute and they have limited

assistance to the Congregation in their on-going responsibilities.

21. Checks have been made in regard to the daily accounts books and whether these
would have been held by the bursar in Hammersmith but this does not appear to be the case

either.

22. The Sisters would accept that there must have been records retained for
contributions made by welfare societies, charitable donations, requests or other records of
that nature as well as any payments by local families for the care of their children. Those
records wéuld have been used to prepare annual reports and, the Inquiry will note from the
Chapters that accounts were part of the report prepared to the General Chapter. We cannot
locate the registers which would have been used to formulate the day to day accounts and
only limited accounts material has been located in regard to annual reporting. That

documentation will also be provided to the Inquiry.

23. It is a matter of regret to the Sisters that the records for every child were not copied
and retained as this would have been of assistance not only to the Inquiry but also to the
Sisters in responding to some of the requests which are now made of them by former
residents looking for information about their lives, claimants in civil actions and to give a

more detailed response to the issues raised in this inquiry.

24, The Sisters will continue to look through the various houses to determine if any

further documentation can be found.

25. It has been noted that there are no specific files of correspondence between the
Sisters and any statutory agencies, correspondence between the Sisters and specific
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Bishops or dioceses and that correspondence between Superiors, Sisters and those
agencies is located in different areas. We have located correspondence in the files relating
to specific Sisters and also correspondence in the personal belongings of Superior. We are
going through all of that material to identify any information which could be of assistance to
the Inquiry and which relates, whether we consider to be of assistance to the Inquiry or not,
to Termonbacca, Bishop Street or Belfast and that material will be forwarded to the Inquiry
for their own consideration. The process of archiving the material belonging to the
congregation is a relatively new process and we are finding material in houses which is

being added to the archives all the time.

26. The work in identifying material is on-going and will be seen as an on-going duty on
the Sisters to assist with the work of the Inquiry.

Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this withess statement are true.

Signed /tix/?r(/({awj/ ..... /3'*'1/1 ol Af s “é‘? (Z :
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HIA REF:
Witness Name:

THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 — 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER BRENDA MCCALL

1. This statement is in regard to a request for information around Siste SR1

. was appointed to her role by the Superior General and her Council and she was
ministering in Termonbacca in that role from 1961 - 1970.

N

3. went for training in the area of Childcare in 1958 when she received a

formal qualification in child care.

4, was considered competent for her role in the field of childcare by the

Superiors in the congregation.
5. SR1 did a residential childcare course in London between 1958-1959.

6. Sisters would have been encouraged to keep up with their qualifications by attending any
courses, lectures or study days which were available to her in the locality in which she was
working. We cannot provide any information as to what these courses were as none of that
information is currently available to us. Inthe circumstances we cannot advise what, if any,
course or training Sister would have attended during her period in Termonbacca.

7. The supervision over Sisters performance and how this would have been done would have
been carried out by Senior Sisters, the Superior, the Regional Superior and the General
Visitators during the period in which she was in her role. Her work would have been
monitored and observed by the people within the order who were instructed to do so as
suggested above.
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8. would have been observed and evaluated during any visits by Superiors,

Regionals or Super Generals or Regional Visitators who were coming over from the general
house in London.

9. was appointed by the Superior General and her council as Superior in

10.

11.

12.

Northampton in 1970 and she remained there until 1976. She was the Superior in Bishop
Street from 1982 — 1985 and then again from 1991 — 1997 when she appointed and selected
by the Superior General and her Council.

Sister was selected for her role as Superior in any house when she was appointed because
she was seen to have possessed the qualifications as required in the constitutions of the
Sisters of Nazareth which are updated and currently state that a Sister would have to “...be
eligible for Superiorship a Sister must possess the qualities required by Canon Law. She
must be at least 40 years of age and ten years perpetually professed. She must be
outstanding for her piety, religious observance, wisdom and loyalty to the congregation, its
spirit and its apostolate. She must be skilled in the art of leadership and have had experience
in the apostolate. She must be able to engender serenity and confidence and to instil
resolution. She is to show kindness with firmness, understanding and a respect towards all.
The Superior must show equal concern for every aspect for the apostolates carried on by the
community, and the Sisters should welcome this solicitude and respond to it”.

As Superior would have had overall responsibility for the wellbeing of the
whole house, the children, elderly residents and other Sisters and it would have been her
duty to go on inspections daily around the house or even more regularly to ensure that all
aspects of the house were running smoothly. She would also have to be available to anyone
whether they be residents or Sisters to speak to.

In her role as Superior she would not have had any direct involvement in caring for the
children but would have had overall responsibility for ensuring their wellbeing.

Statement of Truth

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

Signed ,Jé;/é( /752/; Lot AP 4

Dated

Qé’/@. /Qﬁ/.(,,
r/



SND-077

1. THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL ABUSE 1922 TO 1995

Witness Statement of Sr. Cataldus Courtney

I, Sr. Cataldus Courtney will say as follows -

In Section A

o A brief history of the Sisters of Nazareth
e Background of the Sisters of Nazareth

o The Congregation of the Sisters of Nazareth in the present day

The history of the Sisters of Nazareth’s Residential Children’s Homes in Northern Ireland
e The beginnings of Nazareth House, Belfast
¢ The beginnings of Nazareth Lodge, Belfast
o The beginnings of Nazareth House, Derry
¢ The beginnings of St Joseph’s Termonbacca

Finance

e FEarly days

¢ Changes in society

In Section B
Admission and discharge of children being placed into care of the Sisters of Nazareth

¢ Admission

e Age of children being admitted

¢ Reasons for children being put into care

* Aftercare

o Aftercare in the early years

o Aftercare : the responsibility of the Social Services



16.

SND-161

Following an investigation and disciplinary action, if a member of
staff’s conduct is though fo be so inappropriate that hefshe might
not be a suitable person for work involving children/young people
then this should be notified to the appropriate authorities.



SND-14219

HIA REF:
Witness Name:

THE INQUIRY INTO HISTORICAL INSTITUTIONAL ABUSE 1922 — 1995

WITNESS STATEMENT OF SISTER CORA

1. |, Sister Cora, will say as follows —

2. As Regional Superior for the Irish Region | am anxious to assure the Inquiry of the
Order's commitment to providing full and true disclosure of all material relating to the
conduct of the homes during the relevant period under investigation.

3. The Irish region includes the operations conducted by the Sisters of Nazareth in
Northern and Southern Ireland and is the responsibility of the Regional Superior. |
succeeded Sister Cataldus Courtney in that role on the 7 day of October 2013. | reside
in Dublin from where | have been assisting and supporting those Sisters who are
endeavouring to provide disclosure. | have been in constant communication with our
legal team giving and receiving instructions. | have also attended the Inquiry to hear
the first three days of evidence.

4. Before dealing with the steps that have been taken, and the action | am now taking, to
ensure that the Inquiry has had access to the entirety of the documents we have
available, | shall try to set out the issues which have led to where we are today.

5. In Northern Ireland the Order operated five houses in which children were
accommodated. All are now closed with only Bishop Street remaining in the hands of
the Sisters. Over the years documents have been relocated from each of these
houses. This may explain why many documents cannot be located. Some may have
been destroyed in the passage of time or they simply do not exist.

6. The congregation itself is a declining and ageing body. Many of the Sisters who were in
the homes during the relevant period are deceased. Of those still alive, some are infirm
and those who are active have assumed other roles including the provision of care for
the elder sisters.

7. Inthe last couple of years the Irish region has faced a number of significant issues. We
have had an outbreak of the influenza virus in Fahan which led to an investigation by
the HSE in the south of Ireland. There was an inquiry regarding the suitability of the
Bishop Street home to provide nursing care followed by a detailed review to assess
the viability of the care home. Due to insufficient funds a decision was taken to close
Bishop Street. This was a very stressful time entailing difficult decisions.
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QUESTIONNATHE

CHILD CAKE SERVICE IN VOLUNTARY HOHES

1.(a) Please give & brief description of how
your home 1s governed, stating in
particuler whether your governing body
is independent or subordinate to a
central organisation.

(b) Give categories of members of govern-
ing body (e.g. clerical, lay, male,
female, subscribers, non-subscribers)
and state whether they are selected as

individuels or as representing other
bodies,

(c) What relationship (1f any) has your home
with other children's home(s) or child
caie organisation(s)?

2.(a) Do you receive children on transfer
from other homes?

(b) Do you transfer children to other homes?

(c) Have you any link with an adoption
soclety?
(NOTE: The word "children" here and in
following questions means boys and
girls under 18 years of age).

3 From what geographical area are applic-
ations for edmission normally accepted?
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This House is run by the Sisters
of Nazareth,vhosze head House is in
Hammerami th, Iepdon.

Supericr and Sisters.(Teachers,Cook
ete., All Menbers of the Congregation
of the Poor Sisters of Nazareth.

___ It has relationship with other

_I*_Iqmes u.n_der the same Congfeg_atioq

_of Bigters,

Occasionally.
No.

We are an adoption Society.

Usually Ulster.-but from further
afield if application is made.
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5.(2)

(b)

)

(a)

What are the age limits of children for
vhom the home provides?

Are there any qualifications or dis-

_qualifications for admission?

Is the decision to admit baszed on the
information given by the applicent only?
If not, what additional information is
gethered?

Who collects and collates this inform-
ation - a member of the staff; & member
of the governing body; some other person?

Who takes the decision to admit - the
person in charge of the home; a local
committee; or central office?

6.(a) Where an application is not made on behalf

of a welfare authority, 1s any contact
mede with the welfare authority -

(i) before admission?

(ii) after edmission?

(b) Where contact is mede with the welfare

(c)

authority, what is its nature and purpose?

In what circumsfances would you regard
contact with the welfare authority
inappropriete?

7.(a) What is the total number of children who

can be accommodated in the home?

(b) How many were on the roll at 31lst December,

(c)

1963 (including those who may have been
temporarily sbsent on that dete)?

Of those on the roll st 31lst December,
1963, how many were:
(1) physically handicapped? ...

(ii) educationally sub-normal? . ......
and Clasas.
attending special -seFRRAS?

not attending special schools? .....

IR N ER N

(1iii) ascertained speciel care? .
and ’
ottending day centres? caee

not attending day centres?

SND-7797

HMinimum Maximin

Boys 2 5
Girls 2 18 |

Under 2 if necessity arises.

Children must be mentally scund,- ——

Usually on a Priegt's recomuendation,
or that of the Welfare.

A member of the Staff,

The person in cherge of the Home.

——If necessary, .

" L]

Where child is neglected hy relatives-
or friends after being placed here.

Where Parents or reletives express the

desire to have no such contact.
140.
Welfare VoL,
~uthority cases Total
cases
1i2.
\lelfare vol, If nons at present
~uthorlity cases viould you normally
cases cdmt them
" None. 1. | In necessity
Al 9. Yes.
10 g!
None None Wo.




(iv) in how many of these cases

et does it appear that, since

admission, the child's
condition has -

improved? - sssnse esvsns sosaes
deteriorated? coesee senere smensn

(d).How meny of those in (c¢) ebove, a2lso show
(i) serious behaviour problems? ..... eecees
and
(ii) ettend child guidance clinics? so  «.u..s
(iii) do not attend child guidance clinics? ....
(iv) in how meny of these cases does it
sppear that, since admission, the

child's condition has -

impmved?. LR LA N N RN J sSeseae
deteriorated? e vads [ FENE N ] (R N NN

(e) How many children not included in (c)
(i) ebove, show serious behaviour problems? ..
and
(ii) attend child guidence clinics? ..  «ueee.
(iii) do not attend child guidence clinies? ....
(iv) in how meny of these cases doss it
sppeer thet, since edmission, the

child's condition has -

imPI'OVed? sasmsesw assens sssass
deteriorated? cesee EEXXK] sesven

Welfare Vol If none at prezent
AJuthority ene | Would you normally
cases
cases admlt them

1. 2

None | None

None | None

(NOTE: The term "serious beheviour problems" includes aggressive tendencies,
withdrawal, enuresis, encopressis, pilfering, persistent dishonesty, and

malicious lying).

In respect of children who are not the
responsibility of a welfare suthority -

(a) In how many cases has contect with
parents or relatives been lost (i.e. no
visits, no correspondence, no contribut-
jons towerds maintenance)?

(b) At whet intervals are individusl cases
considered with e view to establishing
contact with parents or reletives?

(c¢) At what intervels is the prospect of
returning such children to the cers of
family or friends explored?

Very fewhave no real contact

6 Months = 1 Year.

SND-7798

As often as an opportunity

_occurs.



9,(a) What is the total steff establishment?

(b) Whet are the cetegories of steff (including

domestic end subsidiery employees, e.g.
gardeners, etc.) et present in post?

SND-7799

(c) Whet members of staff in post heve completed

any of the following recognised courses of

training:-
State State State N.I, Res,
Regd, Enrolled Regd, Sick Child Care
Murse AEEL. Chilarcues Certificate
Nurse Nurse
ICategB'r}"; Ho; Car.egory 1o, | Car.egory No.

category : No.

(d4) Number of staff included in (b) above who
are recognised school teachers snd are
employed es such?

10, (a) Which schools do the children attend?

(b) Are amy of the above schools in your
own premises, and if so how many
children not resident in the home

ettend?

11, What provision is mede by the home for

religious training?

o ——
o4,
Category Number
Full time 20
Part time 4
|
|
— e S
Nursery Home |
Murses 0ffice Any other
Exam. Bd. Housemothers training |
Cerr.lrlcate Certi1ficate
Catevory No. Catcgory ; Ho. | Category fi-!o.
; ; | :
e |
7 I Uater'iﬁg 1.
| : .
! |
I |
T pe ML sivn LR TR
f -‘ fumber of Children

| Hame of School

| I Untder 5~10 | 11-114 | 15+
\Nazareth "icrl.lalla |

: P Si | | |
|Thornhill _
iCollege Derry! 3| 2
I{m‘ichﬂl Tec. | |

: Derry. | ' | 2
| I

= | Nunber of non-

i Name of School resldents who attend

|Ih7m-=ﬁh T]'Uuae.

P.S. I ol

__There is a Chaplain provided and

.ijiatera see that the Ghﬂ.ﬂre n__
mmderstend their Religion and 1lve
_up to it.




b (2) Describe the interest thet outside orgenisations

(b)

(c)

take in the children in the home by way of
entertainments and outings, and state whether
such interest is reguler or spasmodic?

How many children belong to organisations
meeting outside the home, such as -

(1) Boys' and Girls' Clubs see  ees  ose
(ii) Boy Scouts and WOlf Cubs .  .ee  ess
(iii) Boys' Brigade eo ek o=l ule st lEL o s
(iv) Girl Guides and Brownies . .e.  ese
(v) Other Drganilsations (please give
perticulers)? vse vue

aaw ew

What holideys away from the home do the

children have in the year?

(d) Do the children have local friends of their

(e)

(£)

13.(a)
(b)

own age visiting them, or do they go out to
visit friends of their owm age?

Indicete the kind of reletionship thet
children without family contacts have with
adults outside the home. To whet extent

do you feel these relationships are helpful?

Have the children eny other activity outside
the home?

Is there an adequete library in the home?

Do the children meke use of the public
1library or the local mobile library unit?

SND-7800

Some Organisations do take an
interest and provide concerts,

equipment etc., fairly regularly.

Choirs.e.g. Little Gaelic

Singers.
Organlsed srranged
by the Home individually

A1l the Summer.

|Arrenged by local
Priest 53'

Yes.

The people with whom they spend

their holidays keep in contact
with them by letter,visits

prasents ﬁ&f’ . Wie feel this is
very helpiul. e

They attend the swimming baths
also deneing and Piano lessons.

Yes.
Ye Bs




15.

16.(a)

17.

(b)

150

19,

SND-7801

What opportunities are provided for quiet We have rooms set apart for wuese

reading, homework, and/or hobbies? __ ocoupations.

In what other ways do the children gpend In cycling,skating,dancing,violin

their leisure? playing. games e.g.Tahle Temmis.
Younger children heve swings.ete..,

In the case of children discharged other than
to their perents or relatives, what provision
is made for after-care by -

((?i i_inﬁng ir;gl?yment o oo | O Vie £ind emplopment suitahle to their
1r inding £ings cas soe suw

(iii Visiting sse e ese see lodg_'_gg__\ig__hm_y_exy gapab le out-
(iv) supplementing earnings? ... e gide helpers.

Are these services provided by -

(ii) a pert-time Officer .o ses  eee

(i 2 full-time officer .. ass Yy
(iii VOlun't&I’y help? L LN ] s d YBS-

Are your finencial resources sufficient _ _Yes,
to meet your ordinary day-to-day
expenses, and to enable you to employ
all the staff you think should be
employed, and to have premises adequate
for modern standards of child-care?

Are there any desireble developments MNo., i
vwihich you ere unable to undertzke for
reasons of financial difficulty, e.g.:-

(2) improvement of premises and staffing;

(b) employment of a field worker to
investigate applications for
admission end after-cere work? S

If your financial resources ere insufficient,
it would be of assistance to the Council Our financial resources are
if you would give informetion on the sufficient.
following:~-

(2) anmuel running costs of the home;

(b) capital fungd;
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Ao ity gt
e fte

CHILD CARE SERVICE IN VOLUNTAEY HOMES o ﬂ,j
| k}jp.[l,»'
QUESTIONNALEKE

1.(8) Please give a brief description of how Jhie Hons 47 At ,!-7"&! Salins ?.
your home 1s governed, stating in e ’
particular whether your governing body '1103“-3& . O
ie independent or subordinate to &
central organisation.

(b) Give categories of members of govern- /_ﬁrarm ; Mv

ing body (e.g. clericel, lay, male,
femele, subscribers, non-subscribers)
and state whether they eare selected &s ﬁ.ﬂé M&ML\/}

individuals or as representing other zﬂp Feresz jﬁ;{;ﬂ

bedies.

(c) What relationship (if any) has your home U _An_ms-ﬁcf sl 8k

with other children's home(s) or child <
care organisation(s)? At Henleq ths PE i

2.(a) Do you receive children on transfer

from other homes? mw\nu?
(b) Do you trensfer children to other homes? No
(c) Have you any link with an adoption e E

soclety?

(NOTE: The word "children" here and in
following questions mesns boys and
girls under 18 years of ege).

Je From vhat geographical area are applic- /tls_ e u"g"&ﬂ
ations for admission normally accepted? L“/’. 4 i

R AT B 1
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L. What are the age limits of children for | | Minteun | Maximm |
whom the home provides? . RIS

| Boys | 2z S/ C|

Sirle | |

| el Cana s Kapl bt 13,
5.(a) Are there any qualifications or dis- Chddns,,  husat" Jw—c( lfwwti-ﬂe-]

qualificetions for admission?

(b) Is the decision to admit based on the Ahma ggcp, & Fuuasds
informetion given by the applicant only? o that
If not, what additional informetion is Ao “:M . the
gathered? e )

(c) Who collects and collates this inform- . d_m;mip. 9 thu %_ P
ation - & member of the staff; a member  _ == ==~ = ¥ 5
of the governing body; some other person?

(d) Who tekes the decision to admit - the L e s __CJ-.s..}, 3
person in cherge of the home; a local _The e *

committee; or central office?

6.(a) Where an spplication is not made on behalf
of a welfare authority, is any contact
made with the welfare authority -

(i) before admission? A Nacesreny -
(ii) after admission? YHwe Chld ,J,,fu.f&.dc;! Ly
b) Where contact is made with the welfare : P X 3
(b) udabirin  qisid Ol beomy

authority, what is its nature and purpose? P‘e"'““‘d bona.

(¢) In what circumstances would you regerd bae. Prands ¢+ Rbatives
contact with the welfere authority m_ bt s !
; : _Benne kK hose no coueh
inappropriate? E ¢
7.(a) What is the total number of children who o
can be accommodated in the home? : =oap
(b) How many were on the roll at 3lst December, Welfare Vol,
1963 (including those who may have been LUBHOFILY | opcee | TOUAL
temporarily sbsent on that date)? cases
3 44 | %7
(¢) Of those on the roll et 3lst December, lelfare Vo1, | If mone at present
1963, how meny were: Zuthority gasee | Would you normally
cases admit them
; 2 2 - 5
(l) Phy‘SJ.C&].ly handlc&PPed- ') sevese a l_‘_?_u‘ _m"E_TM n'w
- . I ¢ bo W}
(11) educ&‘blonally Sub-nomal? - Peasee e
and i
attending special schools? cieass i
not attending special schools? ..... =N OLRE,
i
(iii) escertained special care? «  ceesss 1| Mewe
and ' in m= |
G—ttendillg day centres? asee ssvene € v : —
not attending dey centres? Y : QLS a




8.

(iv) in how many of these cases
does 1t appeer that, since
admission, the child's
condition has -

improved? . essses sesess sssses
deteriorated? ceeese I creess

(d) How meny of those in (c) above, 2lso show
(i) serious behaviour problems? .....  seeses
and
(ii) ettend child guidance clinics? ..  «.e.ee
(iii) do not attend child guidance clinics? ,...
(iv) in how meny of these ceses does it
eppear that, since edmission, the

child's condition hes -

improved?. veccas sssans srcena
deteriorated? ....s sesesna seessa

(e) How meny children not included in (c)
(i) ebove, show serious behaviour problems? ..
(i3) zzliend child guidsnce clinics? ..  eaeess
(iii) do not attend child guidance clinics? ....
(iv) in how meny of these cases does it
appear that, since admission, the

child's condition has -

imPrOVEd? seeere srssae swssne
deteriorated? cesee ssenee essnsn

Welfare
suthoricy
cases

Vol,

SND-7805

If none at present

would you normally
SaEEs admit them

ald LY ConSersned 5
ﬁmmrw

Nowe ! NowE |

(NOTE: The term "serious beheviour problems" includes aggressive tendencies,
withdrawel, emresis, encopressis, pilfering, persistent dishonesty, and

malicious lying).

In respect of children who are not the
responsibility of e welfare suthority -

() In how many cases hes contact with
perents or relatives been lost (i.e. no
visits, no correspondence, no contribut-
ions towards meintenance)?

(b) At whet intervals are individual ceses

considered with 2 view to establishing | Yewn & So

contact with parents or relatives? ¥ o
(c) At what intervals is the prospect of J

returning such children to the cere of & ﬁgn as &

family or friends explored?



9.(a) What is the total staff esteblishment?

(b) What are the categories of staff (including

SND-7806

|
domestic znd subsidiary employees, e.g. | Category | Number
gardeners, etc.) at present in post? l 4 G | 3
| ﬁ%.&a&h 3
| Loreadeia_ 3
__’}Iﬂ;ﬂ‘ﬂr}m L
(c) What members of staff in post have completed
any of the following recognised courses of
training: -
S 1o e - e i e
Epate i State i btate N.I. Res. Mirsery ; Home
Regd. Enrolled | Regd. Sick Child Care Hurses | Offfice Any other
Hurse HEST, | Children's Certiricate Exam, Bd, | Housemothers traimng |
Nurse Nurse Cerclrzcar,e | Certificate !
| Ca.-l:-ég;r;_: No. "_alt:,egory No. + Category : ¥o. | Category No. Cal:evory No. ' Caregory : Ho, :Car.egory tlo, :
B : : : - | : | |
i : U i I
= P |
| |
| 2
- 1 = |
| . i ;'
' i Sl
(d) Number of staff included in (b) above who
are recognised school teachers and are _hxrme ey =

employed as such?

10, (a) Which schools do the children ettend?

R

(1)

(3

Are sny of the above schools in your
own premises, and if so how many
children not resident in the home
attend?

(b)

11. What provision is made by the home for

religious training?

Name of School ‘

.[/H' Truph- e
| Gl il |
| Srudge S e |
|ﬂw1~nr -

I-ﬂash&‘-& Therat

! Mame of School
| no .

s a6
A o thes

-

umber of Chl ldren

Unflerl 5-10 | 11-14 | 15+

A

— —

| R
‘I-
Iy

Nurmber of non-
residents who attend

Lﬁ“wﬁ
%M.]
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take in the children in the home by woy of bedigerd” ¢ FProwds Coread’ equpannl
entertainments end outings, and state whether &4 Z%Mquimirﬂ

such interest is reguler or spasmodic? R

Sl (a) Describe the interest thot outside organisations Soms Mﬂ‘ﬂ&_ﬂ_ﬂa'ﬂﬁ Ao »

(b) How meny children belong to orgzanisations
meeting outside the home, such &s -

(i) Boys' end Girls' Clubs .vv  ses  oes 40 et
(ii) Boy Scouts and Wolf Cubs «  eee  ses e
(iii) Boys' Brigede SN e
(iv) Girl Guides and Brownies . .e.  see el e e
(v) Other orgenisations (please give .
particulars)? o o 00 0 s B
(c) What holidays away from the home do the | organised | Arranged
children have in the year? [ by the Home tndividually

|
|
|

(&) Do the children heve locel friends of their

own age viaiting them, or do they go out to 42,‘.,
visit friends of their own age? T

(e) Indicete the kind of reletionship that Ho People wnld  1hon the
children without family contacts have with W_'Lﬁaﬂ_ fa ﬁ%
adults outside the home. To what extent b Conlaef: el th Ay
do you feel these relationships are helpful? ,-Emé!éa,_ MJ‘\-E:—_':-\-&:& £de

(£) Have the children eny other activity outside Shosy Ml Anirnsnng
the home? Baths Feret detl F*‘i'—:-?l-ﬂ

13.{2) Is there an adequate library in the home? Hhos v5_a %_M&#A

(b) Do the children make use of the public
librery or the locel mobile library unit? M o s
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1k, What opportunities are provided for quiet Baley 8o Froochle Koo i
reeding, homework, and/or hobbies? [ —atafreded & W
w}w.ﬂm% e e
15. In whaet other ways do the children gpend 2, Qﬂ;,_f!;_ d,-_»y_ghj S‘;.L:o\ Poard
their leisure? P _19‘,.._’_'_ m'.ﬂ;;u "
P-4 For ﬂ-ﬂ*ﬂ‘ﬂ.vu.-.ﬁ,;; abae ooco ;
16.(2) In the case of children discharged other than

to thelr parents or relatives, what provision
is made for after-care by -

(i) finding employment .so  sse oo Méﬁ_-—:/ Ll pd MM &

((ii £inding LOAEINES  ese  eee  ose thei ala biboes A Tarlie

1i1) visiting ane sew s see ? : i ‘Q‘*"

= & - Lo o len W P T -

(1v supplementing earnings? ... ese %_[_fﬁc‘.?z i:f;g : e oL 1:&7

(b) Are these services provided by -
(i) & full-time officer ..
(ii) a part-time officer ..
(1ii) voluntary help?

LR LN 3

Sty S

No

Are your finencisl resources sufficient
to meet your crdinary day-to-day
expenses, and to enable you to employ _
all the staff you think should be
employed, and to have premises cdequate o
for modern standards of child-care?

17.

Are there any desireble developments
which you are unable to undertake for
reasons of financiel difficulty, e.g.:=

(a)

(b) employment of a field worker to
investigate applications for
edmission end after-care work?

18,

improvement of premises and staffing;

If your financial resources are insufficient,
it would be of assistence to the Council
if you would give information on the
following: -

19.

(2) anmel running costs of the home;

(b) capitel fund;

lélnaee_ﬁnd Sl e y

Nine Sawe Pebsps Go rabue

4 e Ao, el



(c) last yeer's capital expenditure;

(d) ectuecl weekly cost of meinteining a
child in the home (not necessarily
the amount charged to welfere
authorities);

(e) income from -

(1) Government grants; eee ses v
(ii) local suthorities; ...
(iii) parentel contributions;
(iv) elms, donetions, or subscriptions;

(v) eny other source?

en e [N N

Whet is your idea of the role and
place of your home in voluntary
child-care service?

20.

SND-7809

41,487 apeds 0n Reets
{ Aectereq i Sanks Eree)

(1) ol - Aatesp]” Harn, Ronda fravsa 6o
(i 3z T%E?F : alort
_k3aq

0 Blunn Collectisnny
;9é;:f;¢ﬂ&; deooline ode ade

G e

Completed form should be returned to -

The Secretary, Child Welfare Council, Ministry of Home Affeirs, Stormont, Belfast,h.

not leter than 31st Januory, 1564,

NI.DL, 437594,
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‘ Reference....... " 7% -

Ministry of Home Affairs,
‘Stormont, Belfagt.

8t, Joseph's Home, Termonbaccs

¥r. Jackson and I sav [N, So)icitor, in the Law

Courts yesterday afternoon. A lengthy discussion on the Nazareth
organisation developed which would be pointless to record here. (I doubt
if_ or indeed any of the people in the local Nazareth Homes are
fully aware of the set-up, financial and otherwise, of the central e
organisation. )

It was clear, however, that the central organisation does%

considerable edministrative control over the satellite Homes.

quoted one instance where in the early days of St. Joseph's the organisation
of the Home had become extremely defective — misappropriation of Home funds
by members of staff ete. - and the central organisation stepped in with
very drastic action including discharge of employees. o

was expected to stand on its own feet financially the Mother Home in London
could and would help wit advances in years in which local incoms ‘was
inadequate, We told,& that we were already aware of these .
advances from an examination of the accounts of St. Joseph's in which ‘the a
transactions appeared as loans and that as far as we could see no attempt
was being made to repay. [N oxvlsined this by saying that the Home
would be told that these advances were not to be regarded as out-and-out
grants and that the Mother House would expect repayment if the resources of
the Home in any year would permit of this, e.g., if they got a substantlal

legacy.

T to1a [N thot 211 the information he had given us merely
confirmed in my mind the rightness of the Ministry's attitude in insisting
that for purposes of determination of f;inancial need the resources of the
organisation as a whole should be taken into account, and that as far as the f
\ Ministry was concerned the matter must be regarded as resting with the "
Ministry's request for a sight of the accounts and balance sheets of that,

On the financial siﬂe_ said that while each separate Home N
£

organisation. I also mentioned that in England the Home OFffice took the : Sl

same line and that in fact no grant had 'ever been paid to a Nazareth Home
there because the Home Office had never managed to persuade the central
organisation to produce accounts.

My impression is that_felt he had no case to press if we
were going to regard the organisation as a whole for grant purposes and he
left us saying that he would return to Derry, inform the local people of his
discussion with us and tell them that he thought they had better step up ¥
their efforts locally to raise money.

P
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THIRD GENERAREPBRALUATION FILE No.

R N
For: THIRD GERN I REVAL. CAGE SUBKHITTED ¥OR DECISION
State — (Revision/Appeal/Commissioner’s Review/other purposes, including case submitted for decision etc)
Whether
District

Valuation
z
Townland Map No. ... 488 .. Local No. S..&ﬁ.ﬁfze@..éﬁ.’) Office NO. ....oovvomt B
Occupier
NET ANNUAL VALUE OF HEREDITAMENT OR PARTS THEREOF
L 1 Agric Land Industriat EXEMPT
Descrngnon of 2 Agric Blds. | Freight-Transport Other than Total
Hereditament 3 Livestock |1, Canals 2, Docks Industrial Non-Exempt Observations Foyle Other than
& 3, Railways etc. N.A.V. Fisheries Foyle
Poultry F, Fishings Fisheries
£ % £ £ £ £ £
D84 | -
REPORT

SR7

dded to this orphanage, old dormitories havins heen

untarily and
central heating

virdows to front of blocks 3

Jovered nlav areas are provided

Sto. ete.

hens, 2 childrens dinin=/sitt

Cn occasions

R Tatal
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